
  City Update 
For weeks ending: May 9, May 16, and May 23 

City Council Mayor & City Administrator 
Position 1: Deady 
May 13 - color committee 
May 13 - tour of lady buds 
May 14 - SCA – PIC meeting 
May 16 - Safety meeting 
May 21 – GMPC meeting 
 
Position 2: Morgan – No Report 
 
Position 3: Edelman 
May 7 - Short Course on Planning put on by the 
Planning Association of Washington 
May 8 - ribbon cutting for the new Antique Store,  
attended the Finance Committee Meeting, 
attended the Council Work Study and Town Hall 
Meeting 
May 9 - Planning and Community Services 
Committee Meeting 
May 14 - pre-PIC and PIC meetings 
May 15 - City Council Meeting 
May 17 - Reserve Officer Academy Graduation 
May 21 - Chamber of Commerce luncheon 
May 22 - Finance Committee Meeting 
 
Position 4: Benson – No Report 
 
Position 5: Taylor – No Report 

 

 
Mayor’s Activities 
 
 
 
 
 
 
City Administrator’s Activities 

Council Commissions, Boards & Committees 
• Budget, Finance and Administration Committee.  Meeting date: May 8, 2014 & May 22, 2014. Next 

meeting: June 12, 2014. Meeting time: 4:00 PM. Staff support: May Miller. 
• Planning and Community Service Committee.  Meeting date May 9, 2014. (Meets the first Tuesday of the 

month.) Meeting time: 4:00. Staff support: Stacey Welsh. 
• Cemetery and Parks Committee.  Meeting date:  June 19, 2014. Meeting time: 10:00 AM. Staff support: 

Aaron Nix. 
• Cemetery Board.  Meeting date June 3, 2014.   Meeting time: 3:30 PM. Staff support: Aaron Nix/Seth 

Boettcher.. 
• Public Works Committee. Meeting date: ________, 2014.  Meeting time: _____.  Staff support: Seth 

Boettcher. 
• Public Safety Committee. Meeting date: ______, 2014.  Meeting time: ______. Staff support: Chief 

Kiblinger. 
Community Development Activities 

• Performed 26 inspections 
• Received applications for:  2 tree removal permits, 1 mechanical, 1 plumbing, 1 single family alteration, 1 Lot Line Adjustment, 3 

right-of-way, 1 Special Event permit (LSCC 4th of July), 1 fire sprinkler permit and 1 Pre-Application (church). 
• Issued 3 plumbing permits.   
• Completed 15 permit reviews   
Planning Commission:   
• Meeting held 5-6-14.  

 
 2014 2013 
Pre-application Conferences Held 1 7 
Preliminary Plats Approved 0 0 
   (Number of Residential Lots) - - 
Multi-family units approved 0 0 
New Single Family Residential Permits Issued 3 8 
New Commercial Square Footage Approved 0 0 
Tenant Improvement Permits Issued 1 3 
Sign Permits Issued 0 2 
Public Hearings Held 1 1 
   



Status of Active Capital Improvement Projects 
Springs Project:    Administration, Public Works Committee, and Council @ CIP workshop agreed with the 
consultant’s recommendation to tap the artesian spring on the north side of the Green River.     Next steps 

Preliminary design  
a. Negotiate scope and fee with RH2 

b. Review scope and fee with funding partners 

c. Call for funds to cover the next element of work 

d. Bring contract to the council for approval   

 Old Lawson Pump Station:    Project Complete  Will be removed from this list next time 

Abrams Guard Rail:    SEPA process complete;  Coordination with Century Link;  Preparing to go to bid. 

½ Mil Tank Painting:     Phase 1 report to enable the City to take the water tank off line is coming soon. 

Old Sewer Lagoon Decommissioning.  Soil samples taken from site where bio solids to be spread in order to 
determine the nitrogen level in the underlying soil.  Test results coming next week.   Then calculate the 
agronomic rate for bio-solids application.  

Reflective Sign Installation:     Done, will be removed from this list next time.  

Downtown Water Main Project:      King County will allow us to use the same consultant selection process from 
our last project.   

Roberts Drive Reconstruction at Rock Creek Bridge:     We are now moving forward with a consultant contract 
with Parametrix for this project.  2 bid schedules: one for the bridge and road and one for the utility work.   

Lawson Street Sidewalk Project:     The Public Works Committee reviewed preliminary design on May 2nd and the 
project is now moving forward to final design.  Need to meet with an adjacent property owner over fence 
encroachment. 

SR 169 / North Commercial Storm Pond (D2):         The wetland study is complete.  Survey work is nearly 
complete.   Staff has delivered as built drawings to the engineers and have walked the project with the Parametrix 
project manager.  

Morganville Sewer Pump Station Reconstruction:       New pumps have been delivered.  We are scoping the work 
for the panel and wiring repairs.   

Council Chambers Remodel: The chairs will be delivered on June 5th.   

• Sheet rock / brick wall covering in July, 

• carpet late July early August,  

• council bench bid July delivery September.  

• Projector and video equipment installation July/August; 

• New Council and administration chairs September.    

Summer asphalt patching:  Preparing bid documents.  Bid in June, contract in July, work in August and or 
September.           

Ginder Creek Trail/Regional Pond:  Study completed by Landau Associates.  Review by the Parks/Cemetery 
Committee will occur at their June 19th meeting. 

General Administrative Activities 
 
• Pet licenses issued: 3; 26 year-to-date;  website updates  18; 137 year-to-date;   business licenses issued: 3; 337 

year-to-date; passports processed  52;  412year-to-date;  Lake Sawyer parking permits issued:   2 ; 10  . 
 

Events on the Horizon 
• See City calendar at  http://www.ci.blackdiamond.wa.us/calendar.html 
• See Maple Valley Black Diamond Chamber of Commerce calendar at  

http://www.maplevalleychamber.org/schedule/calendar/maple-valley-featured-events 
 

• See Black Diamond Historical Society calendar at  http://www.blackdiamondmuseum.org/calendar.htm 
 

• See Black Diamond Community Center calendar at  http://www.blackdiamondcc.org/community/community.html 
 

Adopted Council 2013 Priorities 
 
W2 – Reservoir Painting & Maintenance 
10-year plan for asbestos pipe replacement 
D2 – North Commercial & State Route 169 Stormwater Pond Design 
P2 – Ginder Creek Trail Restoration 
F1 & F2 – Fire Engine Replacement 
T6 – Rock Creek Bridge 
L3 – Police Radio Replacement 

http://www.ci.blackdiamond.wa.us/calendar.html
http://www.maplevalleychamber.org/schedule/calendar/maple-valley-featured-events
http://www.blackdiamondmuseum.org/calendar.htm
http://www.blackdiamondcc.org/community/community.html


 
 

Americans with Disabilities Act – Reasonable Accommodations Provided Upon Request (360-886-5700) 

 
   
 

 CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND 
               June 5, 2014 Regular Business Meeting Agenda 

 25510 Lawson St., Black Diamond, Washington 
 
 

 
 
7:00 P.M. – CALL TO ORDER, FLAG SALUTE, ROLL CALL 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS:  Persons wishing to address the City Council regarding items of new business are encouraged to do so at this time.  
When recognized by the Mayor, please come to the podium and clearly state your name and address.  Please limit your comments to 3 minutes.  If 
you desire a formal agenda placement, please contact the City Clerk at 360-886-5700.  Thank you for attending. 
 
PRESENTATIONS:  

Climate Change Presentation – Matt Kuharic 

Climate Change Counter View Presentation - Bob Edelman 

PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
1) AB14-052 – Six Year Transportation Improvement Plan      Mr. Boettcher 

 
APPOINTMENTS, PRESENTATIONS, ANNOUNCEMENTS:   

Swearing In of Police Reserves 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  None 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
2) AB14-053– Ordinance Amending Black Diamond Municipal Code Relating to Development            

 Agreements          Ms. Welsh 

3) AB14-054 – Resolution Adopting Contract for MDRT Surveyor Consultant Parametirx  Mr. Williamson 

4) AB14-055 – Resolution Adopting Contract for MDRT Traffic Engineer Consultant Parametrix Mr. Williamson 

5) AB14-056 – Resolution Adopting Contract for MDRT Geotechnical Consultant SubTerra  Mr. Williamson 

6) AB14-057 – Resolution Adopting Contract for MDRT Environmental Consultant Perteet  Mr. Williamson 

7) AB14-058 – Resolution Adopting Contract for MDRT Fiscal Analysis Consultant Henderson,  
  Young & Company         Mr. Williamson 

8) AB14-059 – Resolution Adopting Contract for MDRT Civil Engineer RH2    Mr. Williamson 

9) AB14-060 – Resolution Relating to Small Contract Purchases     Ms. Morris 

 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS: 
 
MAYOR’S REPORT: 
 



 
 

Americans with Disabilities Act – Reasonable Accommodations Provided Upon Request (360-886-5700) 

 
COUNCIL REPORTS: 

A. Council Standing Committees and Regional Committees 

• Councilmember Benson - Budget, Finance, Administration Committee; South County Area 
Transportation Board SCATBd); South East Area Transportation Solutions (SEATS) 
Coalition; Mental Illness and Drug Dependency Oversight Committee 

• Councilmember Edelman - Planning and Community Service Committee; Public Issues 
Committee (PIC) 

• Councilmember Deady - Cemetery and Parks Committee; Growth Management Planning 
Council (GMPC) 

• Councilmember Taylor, Chair - Public Works Committee; Public Safety Committee 
• Councilmember Morgan - Water Resource Inventory Area Committee (WRIA 9) 

 
ATTORNEY REPORT: 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
10) Claim Checks –  June 5, 2014, No. 40949 through No. 41006 in the amount of $86,783.20 

11) Minutes – Council Minutes of May 15, 2014 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION:  To discuss with legal counsel pending litigation pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(i) 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Black Diamond 
Post Office Box 599 

Black Diamond, WA 98010 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:   
 
AB14-052 
 
Public Hearing for the 2015-2020 Six 
Year Transportation Improvement 
Program. 

Agenda Date:   June 5, 2014                         AB14-052 
 Mayor Dave Gordon  

City Administrator   
City Attorney Carol Morris  
City Clerk – Brenda L. Martinez  
Community Development – Stacey 
Welsh 

 

Finance – May Miller  
Economic Development – Andy 
Williamson 

 

Cost Impact (see also Fiscal Note):  Planning 
for various budgets 

Parks/Natural Resources – Aaron Nix  

Fund Source:  Various Police – Chief Kiblinger  
Timeline: As per individual project schedules Public Works – Seth Boettcher X 
 Court Administrator – Stephanie 

Metcalf 
 

Agenda Placement:  Mayor   Two Councilmembers  Committee Chair  City Administrator 
Attachments: 2015-2020 Six Year Transportation Improvement Program 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
The City is required to update its Six Year Transportation Improvement Program per Revised 
Code of Washington 35.77.010 and file the Transportation Improvement Program with the 
Washington State Department of Transportation. 
 
Most grant programs require projects to be on the City’s Six Year Transportation Improvement 
Program. The City is required by State law to update the Transportation Improvement Program 
prior to July 1st of each year. 
 
Resolution to adopt the 2015-2020 Six Year Transportation Improvement Program will be 
presented on June 19, 2014. 
 
FISCAL NOTE (Finance Department):  Transportation Improvements are also included as part 
of the 2015-2020 Capital Improvement Plan, where each project shows sources of both 
Revenues and expenditures for each project. 
 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  None – Public Hearing 
 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

June 5, 2014   
         
 



 2015-2020 SIX YEAR TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

EXHIBIT "A"

Rank Year Improvement From To Type of Improvement

Length 

in Miles

Estimated 

Cost Funding

1 2015

General Street 

Improvement N/A N/A

Chip sealing, crack sealing, 

patch work, addressing 

minor safety problems N/A

 $30,000/year; 

$180,000 total Local City Funds

2 2018

Roberts Drive/SR 169 

Roundabout N/A N/A Two lane Roundabout N/A  $   7,070,000 

Developer Mitigation 

and Grant

3 2015

Roberts Drive 

Rehabilitation Sunny Ln. S.R. 169

Grind, patch, replace 

panels, crack sealing, 

shoulder reinforcement 1.10  $   1,520,000 

Pavement 

Preservation Grant, 

Local City Funds

4 2015 Grant Matching Fund N/A N/A Matching funds for grants N/A

 $40,000/year; 

$240,000 total Local City Funds

5 2015 Rock Creek Bridge

75' west of 

Rock Creek 

Bridge Sunny Ln.

Replace barriers, add lead 

in guard rails, concrete 

surface treatment and 

attached pedestrian 

walkway 0.12  $      527,000 

TIB Grant, 

Developer 

Mitigation, Local City 

Funds

6 2018

Lawson Street 

Sidewalk, Ph. II 6th Ave. Newcastle Dr.

5-foot sidewalk on the north 

side of Lawson Street 0.19  $      356,000 

Grant/ TIB, 

Grant/Safe Routes 

to School, Developer 

Mitigation

7 2015 Jones Lake Road S.R. 169 Railroad Ave. Patching and overlay 0.29  $      122,000 

Grant/ TIB, Local 

City Funds

8 2017

228th/224th/216th 

Chip Seal SE 312th St.

Covington- 

Sawyer Road

Patching and chip sealing 

(excluding in front of 

Kentlake Highlands & Fire 

Station) 1.46  $      129,000 

Grant/ TIB, Local 

City Funds

9 2018

232nd Ave. SE 

Overlay or Chip Seal SE 288th St. SE 293rd St. Patching and overlay 0.29  $      143,000 

Grant/ TIB, Local 

City Funds

10 2015 Sidewalk Safety

Railroad Ave. 

@ Museum

Commission 

St. behind 

Museum

Install decorative sidewalk 

and concrete sidewalk, ADA 

improvements 0.04  $      135,000 

Grant/Pedestrian, 

Museum In-Kind 

Contribution, Local 

City Funds

PUBLIC HEARING: held Thursday, June 5, 2014

 7:00 p.m., Black Diamond City Council Chambers



 2015-2020 SIX YEAR TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

EXHIBIT "A"

Rank Year Improvement From To Type of Improvement

Length 

in Miles

Estimated 

Cost Funding

11 2019

Morgan Creek 

Neighborhood Roads 

Preservation N/A N/A Seal Coat 1.19  $        97,000 Local City Funds

TOTAL ALL PROJECTS  $    10,519,000 

PUBLIC HEARING: held Thursday, June 5, 2014

 7:00 p.m., Black Diamond City Council Chambers



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Black Diamond 
Post Office Box 599 

Black Diamond, WA 98010 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:   
 
AB14-053 
 
Ordinance No. 14-1029, amending the 
Black Diamond Municipal Code 
provisions relating to Development 
Agreements. 

Agenda Date:  June 5, 2014                          AB14-053 
 Mayor Dave Gordon  

City Administrator   
City Attorney Carol Morris  
City Clerk – Brenda L. Martinez  
Community Development – Stacey 
Welsh 

X 

Finance – May Miller  
Economic Development – Andy 
Williamson 

 

Cost Impact (see also Fiscal Note):  N/A 
 

Parks/Natural Resources – Aaron Nix  

Fund Source:  Police – Chief Kiblinger  
Timeline:  Public Works – Seth Boettcher  
 Court Administrator – Stephanie 

Metcalf 
 

Agenda Placement:  Mayor   Two Councilmembers  Committee Chair  City Administrator 
Attachments: Ordinance No. 14-1029, RCW 36.70B.170, BDMC Ch. 18.66  
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 
State law, RCW 36.70B.170(1), authorizes a city to enter into a development agreement with a 
person having ownership or control of real property within its jurisdiction. The City code 
contains provisions related to Development Agreements in BDMC Chapter 18.66. The City 
Attorney has advised that the code be amended to be more consistent with state law.  
 
Staff is looking for policy direction from the Council regarding the number of years as shown in 
placeholders “_______(     ) years” on pages 2 and 4 of the ordinance. 
 
FISCAL NOTE (Finance Department): N/A 
 
 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: Discussion by the Planning & 
Community Services Committee at their June meeting. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  MOTION to approve Ordinance No. 14-1029, relating 
to land use and zoning, amending the Black Diamond Municipal Code 
provisions relating to development agreements, requiring consistency between 
existing development regulations and development agreements, identifying 
the elements of an application of a development agreement, describing the 
procedure for processing development agreements, clarifying the effect, 
format, requirements for public hearing, recording and appeals; amending 
BDMC Section 18.66.010; repealing Section 18.66.020; adding new Sections 



18.66.020, 18.66.030, 18.66.040 and 18.66.050 and establishing an effective 
date.   

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

June 5, 2014   
         
 



1 
Ordinance No. 14-1029 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 14-1029 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK 
DIAMOND, WASHINGTON, RELATING TO LAND USE AND ZONING, 
AMENDING THE BLACK DIAMOND MUNICIPAL CODE PROVISIONS 
RELATING TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS, REQUIRING 
CONSISTENCY BETWEEN EXISTING DEVELOPMENT 
REGULATIONS AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS, IDENTIFYING 
THE ELEMENTS OF AN APPLICATION OF A DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT, DESCRIBING THE PROCEDURE FOR PROCESSING 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS, CLARIFYING THE EFFECT, 
FORMAT, REQUIREMENTS FOR PUBLIC HEARING, RECORDING 
AND APPEALS; AMENDING BDMC SECTION 18.66.010; REPEALING 
SECTION 18.66.020; ADDING NEW SECTIONS 18.66.020, 18.66.030, 
18.66.040 AND 18.66.050 AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.   

 
 
WHEREAS, the process in chapter 18.66 BDMC on the subject of development agreements is 
inconsistent with state law (RCW 36.70B.170(1)), which requires that “a development agreement 
shall be consistent with applicable development regulations adopted by a local government 
planning under chapter 36.70A RCW”; and  
 
WHEREAS, state law does not allow the City’s development regulations to be “modified in the 
development agreement” (as currently provided in BCMC Section 18.66.020); and  
 
WHEREAS, chapter 18.66 BDMC does not clearly state that development agreements are 
discretionary, the purpose for which such agreements should be used, the procedure for 
processing development agreements and the manner in which appeals of development agreement 
may be filed; and  
 
WHEREAS, the SEPA Responsible Official has determined that this Ordinance is categorically 
exempt from SEPA as affecting only procedural and no substantive standards, pursuant to WAC 
197-11-800(19); and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council considered this Ordinance during its regular City Council meeting 
on June 5, 2014;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, 
WASHINGTON DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:  
  

Section 1.  Amendment of Section 18.66.010.  Section 18.66.010 of the Black Diamond 
Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:   
 

18.66.010  Intent and Discretionary Nature. 



2 
Ordinance No. 14-1029 

 
The purpose of this chapter is to authorize the use of development 
agreements, consistent with RCW 36.70B.170 through RCW 36.70B.210.  as 
authorized by state law, as a means to document conditions and procedures for 
certain types of development and to thereby provide greater certainty to the city, 
applicants and the public regarding how property will be developed.  
Development agreements may be used for any type of proposals but are 
anticipated to be applied most often to master planned development per chapter 
18.98 and to other large, complex, phased, and/or sensitive development 
proposals where useful.   
 
The City may, but under no circumstances is required to, enter into a development 
agreement with a person having ownership or control of real property within the 
City.  The development agreement may address such project elements as those set 
forth in RCW 36.70B.170B(3).  The development agreement shall be consistent 
with the applicable development regulations of the City.  The consideration 
provided by the property owner for the City’s decision to enter into the 
development agreement may vary, depending on the benefit the development 
agreement will provide to the City and/or the public in general.   
 

Section 2.  Repeal of Section 18.66.020.  Section 18.66.020 of the Black Diamond Municipal 
Code is hereby repealed.  
  
Section 3.  Adoption of new Section 18.66.020.  A new section 18.66.020 is hereby added to the 
Black Diamond Municipal Code: 
 

18.66.020 Form of Agreement, Effect and General Provisions.   
 
A. Form.  All development agreements shall be on the standard form 
approved in advance by the City Attorney for this purpose. 
 
B. Effect.  Development agreements are not project permit applications and 
are not subject to the permit processing procedures in chapter 18.14 of the 
BDMC.  A development agreement shall constitute a binding contract between 
the City and the property owner and the subsequent owners of any later-acquired 
interests in the property identified in the development agreement. 
 
C. Limitations.  Any provision of the development agreement which requires 
the City to:  (1) refrain from exercising any authority; (2) forego adoption of any 
development regulations affecting the property identified in the agreement; (3) 
allow vesting beyond the applicable deadlines for a phased development; shall be 
limited to a period of _____ (__) years.  The development agreement shall also 
contain a proviso that the City may, without incurring any liability, engage in 
action that would otherwise be a breach if the City makes a determination on the 
record that the action is necessary to avoid a serious threat to public health and 
safety, or if the action is required by federal or state law.   



3 
Ordinance No. 14-1029 

 
D. Developer’s Compliance.  The development agreement shall include a 
clause stating that the City’s duties under the agreement are expressly conditioned 
upon the property owner’s substantial compliance with each and every term, 
condition, provision and/or covenant in the development agreement, all applicable 
federal, state and local laws and regulations and the property owner’s obligations 
as identified in any approval or project permit for the property identified in the 
development agreement.   
 
E. No Third Party Rights.  Except as otherwise provided in the development 
agreement, the development agreement shall create no rights enforceable by any 
party who/which is not a party to the development agreement.   
 
F. Liability.  The development agreement shall include clause providing that 
any breach of the development agreement by the City shall give right only to 
damages under state contract law and shall not give rise to any liability under 
chapter 64.40 RCW, the Fifth and Fourteenth Amendments to the U.S. 
Constitution or similar state constitutional provisions.   
 

Section 4.  A new Section 18.66.030 is hereby added to the Black Diamond Municipal Code, 
which shall read as follows:   
 

18.66.030 Application Requirements.  A complete application for a 
development agreement shall consist of the following:   
 
A. Name, address, telephone number and e-mail address (if any) of the 
property owner.  If the applicant is not the property owner, the applicant must 
submit a verified statement from the property owner that the applicant has the 
property owner’s permission to submit the application; 
 
B. Address, parcel number and legal description of the property proposed to 
be subject to the development agreement;  
 
C.  Recent title report confirming that the property identified in the 
application is owned by the applicant/property owner; 
 
D. Identification of any application (project permit application, 
comprehensive plan amendment application, development regulation amendment 
application) that is related to the proposed development agreement;  
 
E. SEPA Checklist; 
 
F. A completed application form and the application fee established by the 
City for this purpose; and  
 



4 
Ordinance No. 14-1029 

G. Any other information requested by the Community Development 
Director relevant to the processing of the development agreement. 
 

Section 5.  A new Section 18.66.040 is hereby added to the Black Diamond Municipal Code, 
which shall read as follows: 
 

18.66.040. Phasing.   
 
A. In order to phase a project to extend the vested rights associated with an 
underlying project permit application, a development agreement is required.  This 
ensures the availability of public facilities and services to all of the property in the 
identified individual phases, allows tracking of the available capacity of public 
facilities and utilities during each phase of construction, and with the extension of 
the vested rights associated with the project, provides certainty to the developer in 
the subsequent development approval process.   
 
B. The deadlines in the City’s code relating to each type of project permit 
application must be consulted to establish the baseline vesting period.  The City is 
not required to extend the vesting period.  If the City decides to do so through a 
development agreement, it must be in exchange for the property owner’s 
provision of corresponding benefits to the City in the form of, for example, 
contributions to public facilities and amenities over and above what would 
normally be required.  In any event, the City shall not allow vesting to extend 
beyond the established ____ (___) year period after approval of the project permit 
application.   
 
C. A development agreement for a phased development (such as a 
subdivision) shall include (in addition to all of the information in Section 
18.66.030), all of the following:   

 
1. identification of the phasing schedule; 
2. identification of the number of phases and all lots included in each 

phase; 
3. identification of the approximate dates for construction of public 

streets, public utilities and other improvements in each phase; 
4. identification of the approximate dates for commencement of 

development of each lot, lot sales and building occupancy; 
5. identification of the benefits that the property owner will provide 

to the City in exchange for permission to phase the development according to the 
proposed schedule; 

6. establishment of the deadline for the property owner to submit 
development applications, including building permit applications, for each phase; 

7. a description of the manner in which each phase is designed such 
that all site requirements are satisfied independently of phases yet to be given 
final approval and constructed; 



5 
Ordinance No. 14-1029 

8. a description of the manner in which the property owner will 
ensure that adequate public facilities are available when the impact of 
development occurs.  The property owner shall acknowledge in the development 
agreement that if the demand for public facilities or services needed to 
accommodate a subsequent development phase increases following the issuance 
of a development permit for a prior phase in the approval process, or if public 
facilities or services included in a concurrency or SEPA determination are not 
constructed as scheduled in the City’s capital facilities plan, final development 
approval may have to be delayed for future phases pending the achievement of the 
adopted levels of service. 

 
Section 6.  A new Section 18.66.050 is hereby added to the Black Diamond Municipal Code, 
which shall read as follows: 
 

18.66.050 Processing Procedures. 
 
A. Consolidation.  Whenever possible, the development agreement shall be 
consolidated for processing with an underlying project permit application or other 
application for a legislative approval.  If the development agreement is 
consolidated with a project permit application, the property owner must agree to 
waive the deadline in RCW 36.70B.080 and BDMC Section 18.14.020.A for 
issuance of a final decision on the underlying application, as well as the 
prohibition on no more than one open record hearing and one closed record 
hearing on the underlying project permit application in RCW 36.70B.060(3) and 
BDMC Sections 2.30.100 and 18.08.070.  
 
B. Public Hearing.  While the Hearing Examiner may provide a 
recommendation on a development agreement (even if the Hearing Examiner 
makes the final decision on the underlying project permit application), the City 
Council shall make the final decision whether to approve a development 
agreement by ordinance or resolution after a public hearing.  Modifications to a 
development agreement shall be in writing, signed by the duly authorized 
representatives of the parties, be consistent with this chapter and follow the same 
procedures set forth in this chapter. 
 
C. Appeal.  A development agreement associated with an underlying project 
permit application may be appealed in the same manner and within the same 
deadline as the underlying project permit application.  A development agreement 
associated with a legislative approval, such as a comprehensive plan amendment, 
may be appealed in the same manner and within the same deadline as the 
legislative approval.   
 
 4. Recording Against the Property.  The City shall record the 
development agreement against the property with the real property records of the 
King County Department of Records and Elections.  During the term of the 



6 
Ordinance No. 14-1029 

agreement, it is binding upon the owners of the property and any successors in 
interest to such property.   
  

Section 7.  Severability.  If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance should be 
held to be unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or 
unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other section, sentence, 
clause or phrase of this Ordinance.  
 
Section 8.  Publication.  This Ordinance shall be published by an approved summary consisting 
of the title. 
 
Section 9.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective five days after publication as 
provided by law.   
 
 PASSED by the Council and approved by the Mayor of the City of Black Diamond, this 

___th day of June, 2014.   

 

     CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND 

 

     _____________________________ 
     Mayor Dave Gordon 
 
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Brenda Martinez, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Office of the City Attorney 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Carol A. Morris, City Attorney 
 
FILED WITH THE CITY CLERK:  
PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL:  
PUBLISHED:  



7 
Ordinance No. 14-1029 

EFFECTIVE DATE:  
ORDINANCE NO:  
  









CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Black Diamond 
Post Office Box 599 

Black Diamond, WA 98010 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date:   June 5, 2014                      AB14-054 
AB14-054 
 
Resolution No. 14-951, authorizing 
the Mayor to execute an amendment 
of the current contract with 
Parametrix, Inc. to serve as the 
survey consultant to the MDRT 

 Mayor Dave Gordon  
City Administrator   
City Attorney Carol Morris  
City Clerk – Brenda L. Martinez  
Community Development – Stacey 
Welsh 

 

Finance – May Miller  
Economic Development – Andy 
Williamson 

X 

Cost Impact:  Variable Parks/Natural Resources – Aaron Nix  
Fund Source:  Pass-through expense to 
Yarrow Bay 

Police – Chief Kiblinger  

Timeline: 3 month extension to contract  Public Works – Seth Boettcher  
  Court Administrator- Stephanie 

Metcalf 
 

Agenda Placement:  Mayor   Two Councilmembers  Committee Chair  City Administrator    
   

 

Attachments: Resolution No. 14-951; Contract Extension; Resolution No. 12-820 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  This resolution is extend the contract via Resolution 12-820, for 
engineering services with Parametrix, Inc. that are due to expire June 30, 2014. The city will be starting 
the process under chapter 39.80 RCW titled Contracts for Architectural and Engineering Services. The 
City has decided to extend expiration date to September 30, 2014 on the existing contract while this 
process is proceeding.   
 
 
 
FISCAL NOTE (Finance Department): Per the Funding Agreement, all cost associated will the contract 
will be reimbursed by the Developer. 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:   
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  MOTION to adopt Resolution 14-951, authorizing the 
Mayor to execute an amendment to the contract with Parametrix, Inc. to 
serve as surveying consultant to the MDRT 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

June 5, 2014   
         
 



 
RESOLUTION NO. 14-951 

 
  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE FIRST 
ADDENDUM TO THE PARAMETRIX, INC. CONTRACT TO 
SERVE AS THE SURVEYING CONSULTANT TO THE 
MASTER DEVELOPMENT REVIEW TEAM 

 
 
 

WHEREAS, on July 9, 2012 the Consultant and the City entered into a contract 
via Resolution No. 12-820 for on-going services as described in that Contract; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Contract will soon expire, and the City would like to extend the 

contract while it complies with state law for the selection of consultants and the 
execution of new contracts with the City;  

 
WHEREAS, the Consultant agrees to continue its performance of services under 

the same terms and conditions in the original Contract; 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, 
WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the first addendum to the 
Parametrix, Inc. contract substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A. 
 
 
 
PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, 
WASHINGTON, AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF, THIS 5TH DAY OF JUNE 2014. 
 
       CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND: 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Dave Gordon, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk 



Page 1 

 
 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO CONSULTANT SERVICES CONTRACT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND AND 

Parametrix, Inc. 
 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT is made to the Consultant Services Contract via Resolution 
No. 12-820  executed between the  City of Black Diamond, a Washington municipal 
corporation (hereinafter the "City"), and Parametrix (hereinafter the “Consultant,”) a 
corporation organized under the laws of the State of Washington, located and doing 
business at 1019 – 39th Avenue S.E., Suite 100, Puyallup, WA  98374. 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, on July 9, 2012, the Consultant and the City entered into a contract 
for on-going services as described in that Contract; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Contract will soon expire, and the City would like to extend the 

contract while it complies with state law for the selection of consultants and the 
execution of new contracts with the City;  

 
WHEREAS, the Consultant agrees to continue its performance of services under 

the same terms and conditions in the original Contract; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein, it 

is agreed by and between the parties as follows: 
 

TERMS 
 

 Section 1.  No Change to Terms and Conditions.  With the exception of the 
expiration date of the Contract between the City and the Consultant, all terms and 
conditions of the Contract shall remain the same.  

Section 2.  New Expiration Date.  The parties agree to extend the expiration date 
of the Contract June 30, 2014 to September 30, 2014. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on this 5th 
day of June, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 

CONSULTANT CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND 
 
 
By: ________________________ 
     Kathleen Cassou 
     Its: Survey Manager 
      
 

  
 
By:________________________ 
     Dave Gordon, Mayor 

Consultant:  Parametrix Inc.   
 
 
 

  

   
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Carol L. Morris, City Attorney’s Office 
 

   
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Brenda Martinez, City Clerk 
 

 
 
 



Page 3 

 





























CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Black Diamond 
Post Office Box 599 

Black Diamond, WA 98010 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date:    June 5, 2014                    AB14-055 
AB14-055 
 
Resolution No. 14-952, authorizing 
the Mayor to execute an amendment 
of the current contract with 
Parametrix, Inc. to serve as the 
traffic engineering consultant to the 
MDRT 

 Mayor Dave Gordon  
City Administrator   
City Attorney Carol Morris  
City Clerk – Brenda L. Martinez  
Community Development – Stacey 
Welsh 

 

Finance – May Miller  
Economic Development – Andy 
Williamson 

X 

Cost Impact:  Variable Parks/Natural Resources – Aaron Nix  
Fund Source:  Pass-through expense to 
Yarrow Bay 

Police – Chief Kiblinger  

Timeline: 3 month extension to contract  Public Works – Seth Boettcher  
  Court Administrator- Stephanie 

Metcalf 
 

Agenda Placement:  Mayor   Two Councilmembers  Committee Chair  City Administrator    
   

 

Attachments: Resolution No. 14-952; Resolution No. 12-791; Contract Extension 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  This resolution is extend the contract via Resolution 12-791, for traffic 
engineering services with Parametrix, Inc. that are due to expire June 30, 2014. The city will be starting 
the process under chapter 39.80 RCW titled Contracts for Architectural and Engineering Services. The 
City has decided to extend expiration date to September 30, 2014 on the existing contract while this 
process is proceeding.   
 
 
 
FISCAL NOTE (Finance Department): Per the Funding Agreement, all cost associated will the contract 
will be reimbursed by the Developer. 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:   
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  MOTION to adopt Resolution 14-952, authorizing the 
Mayor to execute an amendment to the contract with Parametrix, Inc. to 
serve as traffic engineering consultant to the MDRT. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

June 5, 2014   
         
 



 
RESOLUTION NO. 14-952 

 
  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE FIRST 
ADDENDUM TO THE PARAMETRIX, INC. CONTRACT TO 
SERVE AS THE TRAFFIC ENGINEERING CONSULTANT 
TO THE MASTER DEVELOPMENT REVIEW TEAM 

 
 
 

WHEREAS, on April 19, 2012 the Consultant and the City entered into a contract 
via Resolution No. 12-791 for on-going services as described in that Contract; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Contract will soon expire, and the City would like to extend the 

contract while it complies with state law for the selection of consultants and the 
execution of new contracts with the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Consultant agrees to continue its performance of services under 

the same terms and conditions in the original Contract; 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, 
WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the first addendum to the 
Paramtrix, Inc. contract for Traffic Engineering to the MDRT, substantially in the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit A. 
 
 
 
PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, 
WASHINGTON, AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF, THIS 5TH DAY OF JUNE 2014. 
 
       CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND: 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Dave Gordon, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk 



Page 1 

 
 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO CONSULTANT SERVICES CONTRACT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND AND 

Parametrix, Inc. 
 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT is made to the Consultant Services Contract via Resolution 
No.12-791  executed between the  City of Black Diamond, a Washington municipal 
corporation (hereinafter the "City"), and Parametrix (hereinafter the “Consultant,”) a 
corporation organized under the laws of the State of Washington, located and doing 
business at 1019 – 39th Avenue S.E., Suite 100, Puyallup, WA  98374. 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, on April 19, 2012, the Consultant and the City entered into a 
contract for on-going services as described in that Contract; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Contract will soon expire, and the City would like to extend the 

contract while it complies with state law for the selection of consultants and the 
execution of new contracts with the City;  

 
WHEREAS, the Consultant agrees to continue its performance of services under 

the same terms and conditions in the original Contract; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein, it 

is agreed by and between the parties as follows: 
 

TERMS 
 

 Section 1.  No Change to Terms and Conditions.  With the exception of the 
expiration date of the Contract between the City and the Consultant, all terms and 
conditions of the Contract shall remain the same.  

Section 2.  New Expiration Date.  The parties agree to extend the expiration date 
of the Contract June 30, 2014 to September 30, 2014. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on this 5th 
day of June, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 

CONSULTANT CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND 
 
 
By: ________________________ 
     Daniel L. McReynolds 
     Its: Principal 
      
 

  
 
By:________________________ 
     Dave Gordon, Mayor 

Consultant:  Parametrix Inc.   
 
 
 

  

   
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Carol L. Morris, City Attorney’s Office 
 

   
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Brenda Martinez, City Clerk 
 

 
 
 



Page 3 

 





























CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Black Diamond 
Post Office Box 599 

Black Diamond, WA 98010 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date:  June 5, 2014                    AB14-056 
AB14-056 
 
Resolution No. 14-953, authorizing 
the Mayor to execute an amendment 
of the current contract with 
SubTerra, Inc. to serve as the 
geotechnical consultant to the 
MDRT 

 Mayor Dave Gordon  
City Administrator   
City Attorney Carol Morris  
City Clerk – Brenda L. Martinez  
Community Development – Stacey 
Welsh 

 

Finance – May Miller  
Economic Development – Andy 
Williamson 

X 

Cost Impact:  Variable Parks/Natural Resources – Aaron Nix  
Fund Source:  Pass-through expense to 
Yarrow Bay 

Police – Chief Kiblinger  

Timeline: 3 month extension to contract  Public Works – Seth Boettcher  
  Court Administrator- Stephanie 

Metcalf 
 

Agenda Placement:  Mayor   Two Councilmembers  Committee Chair  City Administrator    
   

 

Attachments: Resolution No. 14-983; Resolution No. 12-819; Contract Extension 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  This resolution is extend the contract via Resolution 12-819, for 
geotechnical services with SubTerra, Inc. that are due to expire June 30, 2014. The city will be starting 
the process under chapter 39.80 RCW titled Contracts for Architectural and Engineering Services. The 
City has decided to extend expiration date to September 30, 2014 on the existing contract while this 
process is proceeding.   
 
 
 
FISCAL NOTE (Finance Department): Per the Funding Agreement, all cost associated will the contract 
will be reimbursed by the Developer. 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:   
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  MOTION to adopt Resolution 14-953, authorizing the 
Mayor to execute an amendment to the contract with SubTerra, Inc. to serve 
as geotechnical consultant to the MDRT 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

June 5, 2014   
         
 



 
RESOLUTION NO. 14-953 

 
  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE FIRST 
ADDENDUM TO THE SUBTERRA, INC. CONTRACT TO 
SERVE AS THE GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING 
CONSULTANT TO THE MASTER DEVELOPMENT REVIEW 
TEAM 

 
 
 

WHEREAS, on July 9, 2012 the Consultant and the City entered into a contract 
via Resolution No. 12-819 for on-going services as described in that Contract; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Contract will soon expire, and the City would like to extend the 

contract while it complies with state law for the selection of consultants and the 
execution of new contracts with the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Consultant agrees to continue its performance of services under 

the same terms and conditions in the original Contract; 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, 
WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the first addendum to the 
SubTerra, Inc contract, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A. 
 
 
 
PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, 
WASHINGTON, AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF, THIS 5TH DAY OF JUNE 2014. 
 
       CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND: 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Dave Gordon, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk 



Page 1 

 
 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO CONSULTANT SERVICES CONTRACT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND AND 

SubTerra, Inc. 
 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT is made to the Consultant Services Contract via Resolution 
No. 12-819 executed between the  City of Black Diamond, a Washington municipal 
corporation (hereinafter the "City"), and Sub Terra, Inc. (hereinafter the “Consultant,”) a 
corporation organized under the laws of the State of Washington, located and doing 
business at 218 East North Bend Way, North Bend, WA  98045. 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, on July 9, 2012, the Consultant and the City entered into a contract 
for on-going services as described in that Contract; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Contract will soon expire, and the City would like to extend the 

contract while it complies with state law for the selection of consultants and the 
execution of new contracts with the City;  

 
WHEREAS, the Consultant agrees to continue its performance of services under 

the same terms and conditions in the original Contract; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein, it 

is agreed by and between the parties as follows: 
 

TERMS 
 

 Section 1.  No Change to Terms and Conditions.  With the exception of the 
expiration date of the Contract between the City and the Consultant, all terms and 
conditions of the Contract shall remain the same.  

Section 2.  New Expiration Date.  The parties agree to extend the expiration date 
of the Contract June 30, 2014 to September 30, 2014. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on this 5th 
day of June, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 

CONSULTANT CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND 
 
 
By:________________________ 
     Chris Breeds 
     Its: President 
      
 

  
 
By:________________________ 
     Dave Gordon, Mayor 

Consultant:  SubTerra Inc.   
 
 
 

  

   
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Carol A. Morris, City Attorney’s Office 
 

   
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Brenda Martinez, City Clerk 
 

 
 
 



Page 3 

 





























CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Black Diamond 
Post Office Box 599 

Black Diamond, WA 98010 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date:  June 5, 2014                      AB14-057 
AB14-057 
 
Resolution No. 14-954, authorizing 
the Mayor to execute an amendment 
of the current contract with Perteet, 
Inc. to serve as the environmental 
consultant to the MDRT 

 Mayor Dave Gordon  
City Administrator   
City Attorney Carol Morris  
City Clerk – Brenda L. Martinez  
Community Development – Stacey 
Welsh 

 

Finance – May Miller  
Economic Development – Andy 
Williamson 

X 

Cost Impact:  Variable Parks/Natural Resources – Aaron Nix  
Fund Source:  Pass-through expense to 
Yarrow Bay 

Police – Chief Kiblinger  

Timeline: 3 month extension to contract  Public Works – Seth Boettcher  
  Court Administrator- Stephanie 

Metcalf 
 

Agenda Placement:  Mayor   Two Councilmembers  Committee Chair  City Administrator    
   

 

Attachments: Resolution No. 14-954; Resolution No. 12-802; Contract Extension 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  This resolution is extend the contract via Resolution 12-802, for 
environmental services with Perteet, Inc. that are due to expire June 30, 2014. The city will be starting the 
process under chapter 39.80 RCW titled Contracts for Architectural and Engineering Services. The City 
has decided to extend expiration date to September 30, 2014 on the existing contract while this process is 
proceeding.   
 
 
 
FISCAL NOTE (Finance Department): Per the Funding Agreement, all cost associated will the contract 
will be reimbursed by the Developer. 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:   
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  MOTION to adopt Resolution 14-954, authorizing the 
Mayor to execute an amendment to the contract with Perteet, Inc. to serve as 
environmental consultant to the MDRT. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

June 5, 2014   
         
 



 
RESOLUTION NO. 14-954 

 
  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE FIRST 
ADDENDUM TO THE PERTEET, INC. CONTRACT TO 
SERVE AS THE ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANT TO THE 
MASTER DEVELOPMENT REVIEW TEAM 

 
 
 

WHEREAS, on May 17, 2012 the Consultant and the City entered into a contract 
via Resolution No. 12-802 for on-going services as described in that Contract; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Contract will soon expire, and the City would like to extend the 

contract while it complies with state law for the selection of consultants and the 
execution of new contracts with the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Consultant agrees to continue its performance of services under 

the same terms and conditions in the original Contract; 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, 
WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the first addendum to the Perteet 
contract, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A. 
 
 
 
PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, 
WASHINGTON, AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF, THIS 5TH DAY OF JUNE 2014. 
 
       CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND: 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Dave Gordon, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk 



Page 1 

 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO CONSULTANT SERVICES CONTRACT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND AND 

Perteet, Inc. 
 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT is made to the Consultant Services Contract via Resolution 
12-802 executed between the  City of Black Diamond, a Washington municipal 
corporation (hereinafter the "City"), and Perteet, (hereinafter the “Consultant,”) a 
corporation organized under the laws of the State of Washington, located and doing 
business at 2707 Colby Avenue, Suite 900, Everett, WA  98201. 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, on May 17, 2014, the Consultant and the City entered into a contract 
for on-going services as described in that Contract; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Contract will soon expire, and the City would like to extend the 

contract while it complies with state law for the selection of consultants and the 
execution of new contracts with the City;  

 
WHEREAS, the Consultant agrees to continue its performance of services under 

the same terms and conditions in the original Contract; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein, it 

is agreed by and between the parties as follows: 
 

TERMS 
 

 Section 1.  No Change to Terms and Conditions.  With the exception of the 
expiration date of the Contract between the City and the Consultant, all terms and 
conditions of the Contract shall remain the same.  

Section 2.  New Expiration Date.  The parties agree to extend the expiration date 
of the Contract June 30, 2012 to September 30, 2014. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on this 5th 
day of June, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CONSULTANT 

  
 
 
 
 
 
CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND 



Page 2 

 
 
By:________________________ 
     Crystal Donner 
     Its: President 
      
 

  
 
By:________________________ 
     Dave Gordon, Mayor 

Consultant:  Perteet, Inc.   
 
 
 

  

   
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Carol A. Morris, City Attorney’s Office 
 

   
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Brenda Martinez, City Clerk 
 

 
 
 



Page 3 

 









































CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Black Diamond 
Post Office Box 599 

Black Diamond, WA 98010 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date:   June 5, 2014                          AB14-058 
AB14-058 
 
Resolution No. 14-955, authorizing 
the Mayor to execute an amendment 
of the current contract with 
Henderson, Young & Company Inc. 
to serve as the municipal fiscal 
analysis consultant to the MDRT 

 Mayor Dave Gordon  
City Administrator   
City Attorney Carol Morris  
City Clerk – Brenda L. Martinez  
Community Development – Stacey 
Welsh 

 

Finance – May Miller  
Economic Development – Andy 
Williamson 

X 

Cost Impact:  Variable Parks/Natural Resources – Aaron Nix  
Fund Source:  Pass-through expense to 
Yarrow Bay 

Police – Chief Kiblinger  

Timeline: 3 month extension to contract  Public Works – Seth Boettcher  
  Court Administrator- Stephanie 

Metcalf 
 

Agenda Placement:  Mayor   Two Councilmembers  Committee Chair  City Administrator    
   

 

Attachments: Resolution No. 14-955; Resolution No. 12-793; Contract Extension 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  This resolution is extend the contract via Resolution 12-793, for 
environmental services with Henderson, Young & Company, Inc. that are due to expire June 30, 2014. 
The city will be starting the process under chapter 39.80 RCW titled Contracts for Architectural and 
Engineering Services. The City has decided to extend expiration date to September 30, 2014 on the 
existing contract while this process is proceeding.   
 
 
 
FISCAL NOTE (Finance Department): Per the Funding Agreement, all cost associated will the contract 
will be reimbursed by the Developer. 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:   
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  MOTION to adopt Resolution 14-955, authorizing the 
Mayor to execute an amendment to the contract with Henderson, Young & 
Company, Inc. to serve as municipal fiscal analysis consultant to the MDRT 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

June 5, 2014   
         
 



 
RESOLUTION NO. 14-955 

 
  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE FIRST 
ADDENDUM TO THE HENDERSON, YOUNG & COMPANY, 
INC. CONTRACT TO SERVE AS THE MUNICIPAL FISCAL 
ANALYSIS CONSULTANT TO THE MASTER 
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW TEAM 

 
 
 

WHEREAS, on April 19, 2012 the Consultant and the City entered into a contract 
via Resolution No. 12-793 for on-going services as described in that Contract; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Contract will soon expire, and the City would like to extend the 

contract while it complies with state law for the selection of consultants and the 
execution of new contracts with the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Consultant agrees to continue its performance of services under 

the same terms and conditions in the original Contract; 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, 
WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the first addendum to the 
Henderson, Young & Company contract, substantially in the form attached hereto as 
Exhibit A. 
 
 
 
PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, 
WASHINGTON, AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF, THIS 5TH DAY OF JUNE 2014. 
 
       CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND: 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Dave Gordon, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk 



Page 1 

 
 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO CONSULTANT SERVICES CONTRACT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND AND 

Henderson, Young & Co. 
 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT is made to the Consultant Services Contract via Resolution 
No.12-793 executed between the  City of Black Diamond, a Washington municipal 
corporation (hereinafter the "City"), and Henderson Young & Co., (hereinafter the 
“Consultant,”) a corporation organized under the laws of the State of Washington, 
located and doing business at 8060 – 165th Ave. N.E., Suite 220, Redmond, WA  
98052. 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, on April 19, 2012, the Consultant and the City entered into a 
contract for on-going services as described in that Contract; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Contract will soon expire, and the City would like to extend the 

contract while it complies with state law for the selection of consultants and the 
execution of new contracts with the City;  

 
WHEREAS, the Consultant agrees to continue its performance of services under 

the same terms and conditions in the original Contract; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein, it 

is agreed by and between the parties as follows: 
 

TERMS 
 

 Section 1.  No Change to Terms and Conditions.  With the exception of the 
expiration date of the Contract between the City and the Consultant, all terms and 
conditions of the Contract shall remain the same.  

Section 2.  New Expiration Date.  The parties agree to extend the expiration date 
of the Contract June 30, 2012 to September 30, 2014. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on this 5th 
day of June, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 



Page 2 

 
CONSULTANT 

 
CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND 

 
 
By:________________________ 
     Randall L. Young 
     Its: President 
      
 

  
 
By:________________________ 
     Dave Gordon, Mayor 

Consultant:  Henderson, Young 
& Company, Inc. 

  

 
 
 

  

   
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Carol A. Morris, City Attorney’s Office 
 

   
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Brenda Martinez, City Clerk 
 

 
 
 



Page 3 

 





























CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Black Diamond 
Post Office Box 599 

Black Diamond, WA 98010 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date:   June 5, 2014                      AB14-059 
AB14-059 
 
Resolution No. 14-956, authorizing 
the Mayor to execute an amendment 
of the current contract with RH2 to 
serve as the civil engineering 
consultant to the MDRT 

 Mayor Dave Gordon  
City Administrator   
City Attorney Carol Morris  
City Clerk – Brenda L. Martinez  
Community Development – Stacey 
Welsh 

 

Finance – May Miller  
Economic Development – Andy 
Williamson 

X 

Cost Impact:  Variable Parks/Natural Resources – Aaron Nix  
Fund Source:  Pass-through expense to 
Yarrow Bay 

Police – Chief Kiblinger  

Timeline: 3 month extension to contract  Public Works – Seth Boettcher  
  Court Administrator- Stephanie 

Metcalf 
 

Agenda Placement:  Mayor   Two Councilmembers  Committee Chair  City Administrator    
   

 

Attachments: Resolution No. 14-956; Resolution No. 12-792; Contract Extension 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  This resolution is extend the contract via Resolution 12-792, for 
engineering services with RH2 Engineering, Inc. that are due to expire June 30, 2014. The city will be 
starting the process under chapter 39.80 RCW titled Contracts for Architectural and Engineering 
Services. The City has decided to extend expiration date to September 30, 2014 on the existing contract 
while this process is proceeding.   
 
 
 
FISCAL NOTE (Finance Department): Per the Funding Agreement, all cost associated will the contract 
will be reimbursed by the Developer. 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:   
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  MOTION to adopt Resolution 14-956, authorizing the 
Mayor to execute an amendment to the contract with RH2 Inc. to serve as 
civil engineering consultant to the MDRT 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

June 5, 2014   
         
 



 
RESOLUTION NO. 14-956 

 
  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE FIRST 
ADDENDUM TO THE RH2, INC. CONTRACT TO SERVE AS 
THE CIVIL ENGINEERING CONSULTANT TO THE 
MASTER DEVELOPMENT REVIEW TEAM 

 
 
 

WHEREAS, on April 19, 2012 the Consultant and the City entered into a contract 
via Resolution No. 12-792 for on-going services as described in that Contract; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Contract will soon expire, and the City would like to extend the 

contract while it complies with state law for the selection of consultants and the 
execution of new contracts with the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Consultant agrees to continue its performance of services under 

the same terms and conditions in the original Contract; 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, 
WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the first addendum to the RH2 
contract, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A. 
 
 
 
PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, 
WASHINGTON, AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF, THIS 5TH DAY OF JUNE 2014. 
 
       CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND: 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Dave Gordon, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk 



Page 1 

 
 
 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO CONSULTANT SERVICES CONTRACT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND AND 

RH2 Engineering, Inc. 
 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT is made to the Consultant Services Contract via Resolution 
No.12-792 executed between the  City of Black Diamond, a Washington municipal 
corporation (hereinafter the "City"), and RH2 Engineering, Inc., (hereinafter the 
“Consultant,”) a corporation organized under the laws of the State of Washington, 
located and doing business at 22722 – 29th Drive S.E., Suite 210, Bothell, WA  98021.  
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, on April 19, 2012  the Consultant and the City entered into a 
contract for on-going services as described in that Contract; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Contract will soon expire, and the City would like to extend the 

contract while it complies with state law for the selection of consultants and the 
execution of new contracts with the City;  

 
WHEREAS, the Consultant agrees to continue its performance of services under 

the same terms and conditions in the original Contract; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein, it 

is agreed by and between the parties as follows: 
 

TERMS 
 

 Section 1.  No Change to Terms and Conditions.  With the exception of the 
expiration date of the Contract between the City and the Consultant, all terms and 
conditions of the Contract shall remain the same.  

Section 2.  New Expiration Date.  The parties agree to extend the expiration date 
of the Contract, June 30, 2014 to September 30, 2014. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on this 5th 
day of June, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 



Page 2 

 
CONSULTANT 

 
CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND 

 
 
By:________________________ 
     Tony V. Pardi 
     Its: President  
      
 

  
 
By:________________________ 
     Dave Gordon, Mayor 

Consultant:  RH2 Engineering   
 
 
 

  

   
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Carol A. Morris, City Attorney’s Office 
 

   
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Brenda Martinez, City Clerk 
 

 
 
 



Page 3 

 



































CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Black Diamond 
Post Office Box 599 

Black Diamond, WA 98010 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:   
 
AB14-060 
 
Resolution No. 14-957, authorizing the 
Mayor and one Finance Committee 
member to enter into contracts for 
goods and services 

Agenda Date:    June 5, 2014                       AB14-060 
 Mayor Dave Gordon  

City Administrator   
City Attorney Carol Morris X 
City Clerk – Brenda L. Martinez  
Community Development – Stacey 
Welsh 

 

Finance – May Miller  
Economic Development – Andy 
Williamson 

 

Cost Impact (see also Fiscal Note):   Parks/Natural Resources – Aaron Nix  
Fund Source:   Police – Chief Kiblinger  
Timeline:  Public Works – Seth Boettcher  
 Court Administrator – Stephanie 

Metcalf 
 

Agenda Placement:  Mayor   Two Councilmembers  Committee Chair  City Administrator 
Attachments: Resolution No. 14-957; Resolution No. 08-559 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 
Adoption of this resolution would repeal Resolution No. 08-559 and authorize the Mayor and 
one Finance Committee member to enter into contracts for goods and services where the 
contract amount is $7,500 or less and there is money to cover the purchase in the City’s budget, 
or up to $15,000 where the purchase is for goods or services specifically included as a line item 
in the City’s budget. 
 
FISCAL NOTE (Finance Department): N/A 
 
 
 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: MOTION to adopt Resolution No. 14-957, authorizing 
the Mayor and one member of the Finance Committee to enter into contracts 
for the purchase of goods and services where the contract amount is $7,500 or 
less and there is money to cover the purchase in the City’s budget, or up to 
$15,000 where the purchase is for goods or services specifically included as a 
line item in the City’s budget. 
 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

June 5, 2014   
 



Page 1 of 2 
Resolution No. 14-957 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-957 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND ONE MEMBER OF 
THE FINANCE COMMITTEE TO ENTER INTO 
CONTRACTS FOR THE PURCHASE OF GOODS OR 
SERVICES WHERE THE CONTRACT AMOUNT IS $7,500 
OR LESS AND THERE IS MONEY TO COVER THE 
PURCHASE IN THE CITY’S BUDGET, OR UP TO $15,000 
WHERE THE PURCHASE IS FOR GOODS OR SERVICES 
SPECIFICALLY INCLUDED AS A LINE ITEM IN THE 
CITY’S BUDGET. 

 
WHEREAS, the City adopted Resolution No. 08-559, which allowed the Mayor to enter 

into contracts for the purchase of goods or services where the contract amount is $7,500.00 or 
less and there is money to cover the purchase in the City’s budget, or where the purchase is for 
goods or services specifically included as a line item in the City’s budget; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council now wishes to amend that action such that in addition to 

the Mayor’s signature on such contracts or purchases, a member of the Finance Committee must 
also sign/agree; Now, Therefore,  

 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, WASHINGTON DOES 
RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.  Repeal or Ineffectiveness of Resolution No. 08-559.  The City Council hereby 
repeals or declares Resolution No. 08-559 to be ineffective from this date forward. 
 
 Section 2.  Authority of Mayor and One Member of the Finance Committee to Execute 
Certain Contracts.  The Mayor and One Member of the Finance Committee is hereby authorized 
to execute contracts for goods or services on behalf of the City of Black Diamond without the 
need of further approval from the City Council in either of the following limited circumstances:   
 
 A. Where the total cost of the contract does not exceed $7,500.00 (Seven Thousand 
Five Hundred Dollars) and the money to pay for the goods or services is available in the existing 
City budget previously approved by the City Council; or 
 
 B. Where the particular goods or services to be purchased appear as a specific line 
item in the existing City budget that was previously approved by the City Council, and the total 
cost of the contract entered into by the Mayor for that line item is equal to or less than the 
amount approved in the budget for that line item and does not exceed $15,000.00 (Fifteen 
Thousand Dollars);  PROVIDED:  that this subsection shall not apply to the execution of 
contracts for any goods or services where the contract to be executed is required by state or 
federal law to be determined through a public works competitive bidding process.   
 
 



Page 2 of 2 
Resolution No. 14-957 

 
 
 
PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, 
WASHINGTON, AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF, THIS 5TH DAY OF JUNE, 
2014. 
 
      CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND 
 
 
      By:        
       Dave Gordon, Mayor  
 
ATTEST: 
 
By:       
 Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk   


	CouncilAgenda060514
	AB14-052
	Agenda Bill No. 14-052, 2015-2020 TIP Public Hearing_060514
	City Clerk – Brenda L. Martinez
	Economic Development – Andy Williamson
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date



	6 year TIP draft_2015-2020

	AB14-053
	Agenda Bill No 14-053, Amending BDMC re DA Agreements
	City Clerk – Brenda L. Martinez
	Economic Development – Andy Williamson
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date



	Ordinance No. 14-1029, DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
	Attach 1
	Attach 2

	AB14-054
	Agenda Bill No. 14-054, Extension Contract Parametrix-Survey
	City Clerk – Brenda L. Martinez
	Economic Development – Andy Williamson
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date



	Resolution No. 14-951, Parametrix Survey 
	Extension Parametrix(Survey) 1st Amend
	Resolution 12-820

	AB14-055
	Agenda Bill No. 14-055, Parametrix-Traffic
	City Clerk – Brenda L. Martinez
	Economic Development – Andy Williamson
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date



	Resolution No. 14-952, Parametrix Traffic
	Extension Parametrix(Traffic) 1st Amend
	Resolution 12-791

	AB14-056
	Agenda Bill No. 14-056, SubTerra
	City Clerk – Brenda L. Martinez
	Economic Development – Andy Williamson
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date



	Resolution No. 14-953, SubTerra
	Extension Sub Terra 1st Amend
	Resolution 12-819

	AB14-057
	Agenda Bill No. 14-057, Perteet
	City Clerk – Brenda L. Martinez
	Economic Development – Andy Williamson
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date



	Resolution No. 14-954, Perteet
	Extension Contract Perteet 1st Amend
	Resolution 12-802

	AB14-058
	Agenda Bill No. 14-058, Henderson Young
	City Clerk – Brenda L. Martinez
	Economic Development – Andy Williamson
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date



	Resolution No. 14-955, Henderson Young
	Contract Henderson Young 1st Amend
	Resolution 12-793

	AB14-059
	Agenda Bill No. 14-059, RH2 Contract Amendment
	City Clerk – Brenda L. Martinez
	Economic Development – Andy Williamson
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date



	Resolution No. 14-956, RH2 
	Extension RH2 1st Amend
	Resolution 12-792

	AB14-060
	Agenda Bill No. 14-060, Small Contract Purchases
	City Clerk – Brenda L. Martinez
	Economic Development – Andy Williamson
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date



	Resolution No. 14-957, Small Contracts Authorization
	RESOLUTION NO. 14-957


	BD_City_Hall_Update_Form.pdf
	City Update


